% o

N

YORK

CEITY QF

COUNCIL @

/

Notice of a public meeting of

Place Scrutiny Committee

To: Councillors Healey (Vice-Chair), Baxter, Fenton, Hook,
D Myers, K Taylor, Vassie and Whitcroft

Date: Monday, 26 January 2026

Time: 5.30 pm

Venue: West Offices - Station Rise, York YO1 6GA

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence
To note apologies for absence.

2. Declarations of Interest (Pages 5 - 6)
At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are
asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on
this agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the
Register of Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of
the interest.

3. Minutes (Pages 7 - 14)
To approve and sign the minutes of the Place Scrutiny
Committee held on 25 November 2025.

4.  Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the Committee.



Please note that our registration deadlines are set as 2
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at our meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Thursday 22
January 2026.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the registration
form or the meeting, please contact Democratic Services.
Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will
be webcast including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

Asset Management Strategy - 2026 to 2031 (Pages 15 - 126)
This report will go to the Executive on 3rd March 2026, Place
Scrutiny Committee are asked to consider the strategy and
provide feedback to inform the Executive decision-making
process.

Work Plan (Pages 127 - 132)
To consider the Committee work plan.

Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democracy Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak
Business of the meeting
Any special arrangements
Copies of reports and



http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts

e For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EPEAEMIESIRHEEREISS (cantonese)
g3 27 IR NEa SEw (7l ( TS AR | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Follsh)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
G e ) G T e (Ura)
T (01904) 551550




This page is intentionally left blank



(1)

Page 5

Declarations of Interest — guidance for Members

Members must consider their interests, and act according to the

following:

Type of Interest

You must

Interests

Disclosable Pecuniary

Disclose the interest, not participate
in the discussion or vote, and leave
the meeting unless you have a
dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

Disclose the interest; speak on the
item only if the public are also
allowed to speak, but otherwise not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Affects)
OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Affects)

Disclose the interest; remain in the
meeting, participate and vote unless
the matter affects the financial
interest or well-being:

(a) to a greater extent than it affects
the financial interest or well-being of
a majority of inhabitants of the
affected ward; and

(b) a reasonable member of the
public knowing all the facts would
believe that it would affect your view
of the wider public interest.

In which case, speak on the item
only if the public are also allowed to
speak, but otherwise do not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Agenda Item 2

(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or
their spouse/partner.

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations,



Page 6

and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992.



Page 7 Agenda Item 3

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Place Scrutiny Committee

Date 25 November 2025

Present Councillors Healey (Vice-Chair), Baxter,

Fenton, Hook, D Myers, K Taylor, Vassie,
Whitcroft and Wells (Substitute)

Officers in Tom Horner - Head of Transport Policy and
Attendance Travel Behaviour
Andrew Leadbetter - Transport Project
Manager — EV Strategy
James Parker — Scrutiny Officer

In Attendance Councillor Ravilious — Executive Member for
Transport
Councillor Kent — Executive Member for
Environment and Climate Emergency

Apologies Councillors Burton

13. Apologies for Absence (17:30)

The Committee noted apologies from ClIr Burton who was substituted by
ClIr Wells.

With ClIr Burton’s absence the Vice Chair ClIr Healey chaired the meeting,
and the Committee voted to make ClIr Whitcroft Vice Chair for the meeting.
14. Declarations of Interest (17:30)

Members were asked to declare any personal interests not included on the
Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests or any disclosable pecuniary
interests which they may have in respect of business on the agenda. None
were declared.

15. Minutes (17:31)

Resolved: That the minutes of the Place Scrutiny Committee on 23
September 2025 be signed as a correct record of the meeting.



Page 8

16. Public Participation (17:31)

It was reported that there had been four registrations to speak at the
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

Karen Woodwood spoke as a former manager of the Dial and Ride service
in York. She outlined the challenges the service faced and recommended a
new service should use smaller vehicles able to transport people in and out
of town with full time staff employed as drivers.

Clir Steward noted his disappointment that more hadn’t been done since
Dial and Ride collapsed in York. He noted that the lose of the service had
greatly affected residents’ mobility and had contributed to loneliness. He
recommended that the Committee suggest the Council not spend time on
consultants and look to quickly set up a local community transport program
like is done across the country.

James Leather recommended that the Council change its stance on on
street EV charging stating that the Council needed to support gully
charging due to the challenges and costs to those who didn’t have a
driveway.

Flick Williams raised her concern that York had been without door-to-door
community transport for two years and stated that the Council had missed
funding opportunities noting 11 North Yorkshire groups receiving funding
for community transport. She stated that the demand in York was clear and
asked that the Council didn’t waste time searching for demand for the
service.

17. Community Transport Study Proposal (Dial and Ride) (17:46)

The Head of Transport Policy and Travel Behaviour introduced the report.
He apologised for the time taken to reach this point and acknowledged the
desire to get a community transport service running as soon as possible.
He however, outlined the importance of undertaking the proposed study to
ensure a long-term solution could be identified and developed that would
be capable of unlocking sufficient funding to ensure a successful service.

The Committee expressed its disappointment and frustration that the
Council had not achieved more to develop a new community transport
service, highlighting that two years had passed since the service folded and
the work undertaken by the scrutiny task and finish group on the topic.
Members enquired whether instead of commissioning a study if the



Page 9

£20,000 allocated in the budget could instead be used to start a new
community transport service while the Council sought additional funding.
Officers explained that the £20,000 would not achieve much in launching
the service and argued that the study was needed to ensure the Council
could attract long term funding. Officers also explained that they were
seeking to use consultants for this work as there was not the capacity in the
Council for the work noting that North Yorkshire Combined Authority was
now the Transport Authority.

Members asked whether the Council was confident that it would be able to
secure funding for the service form the Combined Authority. It was noted
that the Combined Authority was still awaiting its final grand settlement,
therefore the amount of funding available was still to be determined,
however, Officers explained that they would expect a community transport
service to perform well in attracting funding against other schemes. The
Committee also enquired about other funding options such as working with
Adult Social Care and officers confirmed that those conversations would
take place. Officers also confirmed to Members that they would explore
potential available funding from the sale of vehicles form the pervious
scheme.

The Committee raised concerns that the proposed scope of the study
would be to narrow. Members noted that the task and finish group had
investigated multiple different models and asked that the Council consider if
a wider scope such as including transport for people in remote locations or
SEND transport could help develop a better service. They also enquired as
to whether a bridging service was a possibility and raised concern that the
option of an in-house provision was not being sufficiently considered.
Officers agreed the committee and stated that they would look at the
possibility of expanding the scope for consideration in the study, as well as,
exploring the option of an in-house run service. Officers also confirmed
they would consider if a bridging position was possible but noted that this
would be unlikely.

The Executive Member for Transport acknowledged the frustration and the
harm the lack of a community transport service since the collapse of the
Dial and Ride service. She stated that it was challenging for staff in
transport due to the high volume of day-to-day work, staff sickness, and
vacancies. She therefore argued that this was why it was crucial to
undertake a study which could identify a sustainable long-term model which
would be capable of attracting funding for the service.



Page 10

Resolved:

I. Torequest that the Executive Member for Transport seek to
increase the priority of delivering a community transport service;

ii.  To request that the Council explore the rollout of a bridging
service to deliver community transport while a permeant model
was being developed;

iii. To request that the scope of the study be expanded to explore
whether different models which could include a wider user base
of a community transport service could provide to be a more
viable/more effective service;

iv. To request that the study consider the viability and effectiveness
of delivering an in-house community transport service rather
than external provision;

v. That officers would explore options for potential funding such as
funding from Adult Social Care and would also explore the use
of funds from the sale of assets connected to the previous
scheme.

Reason: To support the delivery of an effective community transport
service in York.

18. Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy (18:26)

Officers introduced the report and gave a presentation on the developing
Electric Vehicle (EV) Strategy 2026-2030. The Committee considered the
direction of the Council’s strategy for EV charging 2026-2030 and
discussed whether more work should be done to ensure on street charging
and enquired with officers if more could be done to address the challenges
outlined by officers for why the Council was not planning to support the
introduction of on street EV charging. Officers confirmed that they were
happy to continue to review new technology and regulations around on
street EV charging but as it stood, they were of the opinion, that there were
significant challenges and issue with their role out, including the risk of
electrocution.

The Committee asked officers if they knew why Government grants had
been granted to Council’s who had undertaken pilots of on street EV
charging considering the electrocution risk. Officers confirmed that they
were surprised to see trails of this nature and agreed with the Executive
Member for Transport that they would contract the Department for
Transport about these risks. Officers noted that different trails had been run
across the country and the Council was well placed sharing information and
learning from different trails, currently they confirmed that authorities had to



Page 11

take on the risks associated with trailing products and that these were not
without issues.

The Committee raised concerns of an equity of access to charging in the
city and highlighted the disparity in charging prices. The Committee noted
that for those that could use charging from their driveway at around 7p per
KWH compared to prices at hyper hubs of around 70 to 80p per KWH.
Officers acknowledged that the cost difference was large for those using
commercial charging compared to at home charging. Officers highlighted
that the Council owned the public charging network and therefore were
able to run at cost keeping prices below other private charging locations.
The fact that the Council’s charging points were from a commercial energy
tariff made it harder to bring cost down and that potential regulatory
charges could assist with this from government. Officers also noted that
gully charging in many areas came with installation and yearly maintenance
costs which would add to the cost of gully charging.

Members enquired about how often the Council’s charging points were
used and raised concerns that the lack of access to on street charging for
those without driveways, were a barrier to people switching from Internal
Combustion Engine (ICE) cars to EV. Officers confirmed that the network
was supporting around 40,000 charging sessions annual but that these
numbers varied across the type of charging sites with larger numbers
attending hyper hubs. Regarding access Officers confirmed that a key
proposal for the strategy was the continued rollout of standard charging
points in the community that are easily accessible for residents across the
city. Officers confirmed that more standard community charging it was
confirmed would be joined by two new hyper hubs, as well as, working with
a new energy supplier looking to bring the cost of charging down. They also
confirmed that they would aim to remain open to new technologies which
could change options for EV charging.

The Executive Member for Transport discussed with the Committee how
the strategy would work alongside the Councils Transport Strategy,
highlighting, the aim to prioritise, walking, wheeling, cycling, and public
transport before encouraging car usage. The Committee suggested that
choosing between types of car and types of transport were different and
that residents were contacting Councillors regarding there need for on
street charging. The Executive Member for Transport outlined that the
strategy aimed to offer everyone access to charging points but that the
Council didn’t wish to prioritise encouraging all households to switch form
individual ICE to EV ownership and instead promote different forms of
travel, such as, walking, cycling, public transport, or things such as car
sharing. She highlighted that the city would still have congestion issues
unless the Council meet its target of reducing car journeys in the city.



Page 12

Officers confirmed that the charging strategy aimed to deliver enough
charging provision across the city that there would not be an increase in
milage from individuals traveling to charging points.

Resolved:

I.  To recommend that the Executive Member for Transport write
to the Department for Transport to recommend that the Office
for Zero Emission Vehicles takes greater control of trails and
studies for EV charging across the UK;

li. Torecommend that the Executive Member for Transport write
to the Department for Transport to seek clarification for why the
Government were providing grant funding for some on street
charging schemes in light of the risk of electrocution;

lii. Torecommend that the strategy include a midpoint review and
that on street EV charging be explored in any review of the
strategy;

Iv. Torecommend that officers review the wording used in the
developing strategy around whether the Council is not wishing
to embed car usage;

v. Torecommend that the strategy include carbon emissions data
from car travel in the city and the impact from switching from
ICE to EV vehicles;

vi. To recommend that the strategy focus on ensuring equitable
access to EV charging across the city.

Reason: To feed into the development of the 2026-2030 Electric Vehicle
Strategy for York.

19. Work Plan (19:50)

The Committee considered their work plan for 2025-26 and considered
whether the Committee should develop the proposal for a task and finish
group to explore the options around delivering on street EV charging in the
city. The Committee also noted that it was expecting the opportunity to
consider the item on library needs assessment in the early 2026 and
considered whether with the new Chief Operating Officers appointment if
they could explore how the Council could expand its commercial activity.

Resolved:

I.  That the Committee would work with the Council’s Scrutiny
Officer to develop a task and finish group proposal to be
brought back to the Committee’s January meeting regarding
On Street EV charging.



Page 13

Reason: To explore the possibility of introducing On Street EV charging
in York.

Councillor Healey, Vice Chair
[The meeting started at 5.30 pm and finished at 7.55 pm].



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15 Agenda ltem 5

Meeting: Executive

Meeting date: 3rd March 2026 (Prior — Place Scrutiny Committee

26" January 2026)

Report of: Director of Finance

Portfolio of: Executive Member for Finance, Performance, Major

Projects, Human Rights, Equality & Inclusion

Decision Report:

Update on the Asset Management Strategy - 2026 to
2031

Subject of Report

1.

This report will go to the Executive on 3™ March 2026, Place Scrutiny
Committee are asked to consider the strategy and provide feedback to inform
the Executive decision-making process.

This report sets out progress against the delivery of the Asset Management
Strategy for the council for the period 2020-2025, as reported to Executive in
November 2020. The report provides an update on the performance of the
council’s commercial portfolio of property, which provides a vital source of
income in financing Council services. The report provides updates on work
flows and sets out the Strategy for a further 5 year period to 2031, to benefit
both social outcomes and financial performance, arising from the council’s
land and property assets.

The report sets out;
a. The key principles of the Asset Management Strategy

b. An update on those work flows as identified previously by the Asset
Management Strategy split into;

I Commercial Portfolio (Paras 20 to 46)



Page 16

. Operational Estate (Paras 47 to 54)

iii. Community Assets (Paras 55 to 96)

b. A number of property led proposals deliver strategic and
financial benefits to the council, as set out within the main body
of this report.

Benefits and Challenges

4. This report illustrates the benefits of the council’s property portfolio both in
terms of its revenue generation and its ability to aid the facilitation of
regeneration.

5. The report provides an update on previously reported decisions, including
disposals, bringing in the benefit of financial receipts to the council.

6. The report outlines a number of proposed property transactions whereby
assets will be transferred to the community enhancing community
involvement in the running of those facilities.

Policy Basis for Decision

7. The management of General Fund assets was set out by the previous Asset
Management Strategy covered by the current Asset Management Plan
2020- 2025 and reported to Executive in November 2020. The principles of
the Strategy were maintained in 2020 from the previous Strategy, with the
addition to incorporate the impacts of the council’'s commitment to net
carbon neutrality by 2030. The current Strategy sets out three objectives
and a set of principles to drive future asset planning. The Objectives are;

1. To use our assets to deliver policy goals;

2. To operate our estate efficiently and dynamically to support the
effective delivery of council services;

3. To use council assets to generate maximum income in order to
support the delivery of council priorities.



Page 17

8. These objectives are broken down into more detailed principles which guide
our activity planning and decision making, the principles are :-

a. We will use our assets to maximise positive outcomes for our
communities;

b. In order to protect direct services we should reduce the overall
cost of the estate through:-

. rationalisation of assets

. disposal of poor quality assets

. exploiting commercial opportunities

. co-location of Council and other public sector services (including

Health, care, police, education);

c. We will use our commercial assets to generate income to
support service delivery;

d. We will use our assets to create efficiencies and reduce service
costs, for example to reduce reliance on out of city placements
for people with complex needs;

e. Assets should support the council and its partners to achieve
joined up services and improved outcomes - buildings should
not be exclusive to one particular service and community
spaces should where possible be flexible and adaptable to
support a range of uses.

f. We will acquire or hold assets to drive economic development

or regenerate an underperforming part of the city;

g. We will use assets to deliver and accelerate housing provision

in the city.

h. To operate our estate sustainably, efficiently and dynamically
to support the effective delivery of council services and
achieve carbon neutrality by 2030 on our estate

I. Assets should be operated/managed by the community where

a community group is best placed to deliver outcomes;

j. We should use assets to support area based working. (This to

ensure the outcomes of the Neighbourhood Model as approved
by Executive in November 2025 are followed).

k. Where schools become academies we will work to maximise the
use of education land to the benefit of education and wider
community use.



10.

Page 18

9. It is considered that the principles and objectives of the Asset
Management Strategy (AMS) are fit for purpose and that they are
retained going forwards. Through maintenance of this approach, the
Asset Management Strategy will support the broad Council Plan
aspirations as follows:

Equalities and Human Rights — utilise the council’s estate to support
regeneration to overcome deprivation in the city

Affordability — create more affordable housing on land that we own whilst
supporting regeneration that can lead to the creation of better paid jobs in
York

Climate - via operating the estate more sustainably in alignment with our
climate and carbon ambitions

Health — create a more connected health and community estate, coopting
space to make a generate more efficient services for residents. As in “J”
above, this again links to the York Neighbourhood Model and integrated
neighbourhood teams.

In doing so, it aligns with priorities identified in the Council Plan, namely:

Health and wellbeing: a health generating city for children and adults
through the utilisation of the council assets to create a more sustainable
environment that benefits from better use of community space whilst co-
locating with partners to drive and improve efficiency in service provision

Economy: a fair, thriving, green economy for all through regeneration
opportunities and using our assets to drive economic opportunity

Housing: increasing the supply of affordable housing — through using our
assets to increase the supply of affordable housing in York

Sustainability: cutting carbon, enhancing the environment of our future — via
using our estate as an exemplar of creating efficient, sustainable services

More broadly, the AMS links into the aspirations of the York 2032 strategy
and policy framework which sets out a vision for York to be a “vibrant,
prosperous, welcoming and sustainable city, where everyone can share and
take pride and share in its success.



Page 19

11.We have been designated a One Public Estate authority since 2014 which

12.

13.

has attracted funding totalling £675k to develop exemplar projects to
support the national programme of work designed to :-

a. Create economic growth (homes and jobs)

b. Encourage more integrated and customer-focused services
c. Generate capital receipts

d. Reduce running costs.

This has included projects at; West Offices, Guildhall, Lowfields,
Burnholme and Bootham Park Hospital. A further £2.64m has been
received through the OPE'’s brownfield land release fund which has
contributed to work at Ordnance Lane and the former Tang Hall library.

The strategy reflects these ambitions and progress to date exemplifies
progressive cross-public sector working and demonstrable success in
delivering these objectives.

The Council owns a number of vacant sites which Executive have made
decisions upon (July 2024 and October 2025 and which are referenced
on the “Background Papers” section of this report). Updates have been
provided with the emphasis upon delivering affordable housing provision
on these sites which include the former Manor School, Askham Bar and
Willow House. Executive will be updated in the future through the housing
delivery programme reporting updates, on progress regarding such.

Assessing future use of council assets

14.

15.

The city council’s estate is extensive and varied and there are a number of
scenarios that initiate a review of the current or future use of an asset.
These include :-

-Service model shifts and requires different space use,

-Current asset no longer fit for purpose

-Asset requires significant maintenance investment

-Budget reductions require a rationalisation

-Potential for sharing an asset with another organisation or service

-Inability to let a commercial property or commercial asset not performing
well

-Investment opportunity on the open market

The route to develop alternatives and proposals may vary depending on
the above scenario but typically involves dialogue between a service, the



Page 20

Asset Management, City Development and Finance team, establishing the
parameters for the decision, developing potentially multiple business cases
that enable evaluation of the financial implications and the (more difficult
to measure) social environment and economic impacts. The process for
developing options and making recommendations is overseen by the
Corporate Management Team who ensure that a comprehensive review of
opportunities has been undertaken and that proposals made by services
have strategic support.

Financial Strategy Implications

16.

17.

18.

Depending on the scale of the proposals, decisions may be taken at
different levels. The Financial Regulations set out the thresholds for
decision making however the community impact/ sensitivity is less easy to
calculate and therefore most asset disposals, acquisitions and significant
changes of use decisions are taken by Executive or by the Executive
Member for Finance, Performance, Major Projects, Human Rights,
Equality and Inclusion.

There are a number of significant financial implications surrounding the
recommendations in this report. These are considered by themes in the
paragraphs within the report below.

The property portfolio provides a valuable income stream to the council
which forms an integral part of its annual revenue in providing and funding
its services. The performance of the portfolio is intrinsic to the delivery of
its revenue targets and the recommendations outlined both note the
performance of the asset base and provide opportunities to enhance its
revenue profile whilst bringing forwards other strategic policy objectives.

Recommendation and Reasons

19. The Place Scrutiny Committee is asked to consider the strategy and
provide feedback on the Asset Management Strategy - 2026 to 2031.

20. Reason: To inform the Executive decision-making process of the
views of the Place Scrutiny Committee in relation to the Asset
Management Strategy - 2026 to 2031.

21. The Executive will be asked to :



Page 21

Note the performance of the council’s property estate and the annual
revenue it provides.

Note the performance against the specific workflows, including
disposals, as previously set out in the previous Strategy and the re-
shaping of the operational estate at West Offices to provide additional
annual revenue.

Note the performance and role the estate has played in helping to
reduce the council’s carbon footprint.

Note and agree the principles of the Strategy which will form the
Corporate Asset Strategy for the next 5 years, 2026-2031;

Agree to:

()  the sale of 25/27 Coney Street and lease back of part on a 999-
year lease;

(I)  the lease of approximately 0.13 acres of land at the Community
Stadium for 20 years;

() the grant of alease renewal at 17-21 Piccadilly;

(IV) lease the various City Council owned allotments, as detailed
within the report to York Allotment Charitable Incorporated
Organisation (YACIO) for 35 years at a peppercorn rental;

(V) lease Bustardthorpe Allotments, Bishopthorpe Road, to
Bustardthorpe Allotment Association for 35 years at a
peppercorn rental;

(Vl) lease the store and outdoor space in Rowntree Park
maintenance depot to York Canoe Club for 15 years at a
peppercorn rental;

(VIl) lease the garage in Rowntree Park to the Friends of Rowntree
Park for 15 years at a peppercorn rental;

(VIIl) lease of the Rowntree Park Lodge Garden to the Friends of
Rowntree Park for 99 years at a peppercorn rental subject to the
Friends meeting the requirement of original lease for the upper
floors;

(IX) lease the land at York Road, Strensall to Strensall and
Towthorpe Parish Council for 70 years at a peppercorn rental;
and



Page 22

(X) lease the land in Hull Road Park to Choose 2 Youth for 10 years
at a peppercorn rental,

all on the terms and conditions outlined in the report;

f) Delegate to the Director of Finance (in consultation with the Director
of Governance) authority to take such steps as are necessary to agree
and complete the above transactions as detailed in this report; and

g) Delegate to the Director of Finance (in consultation with the Director
of Governance and the Executive Member for Finance, Performance,
Major Projects, Human Rights, Equality and Inclusion) authority to
acquire and dispose of all interests in land.

22. Reason

a. To ensure work continues to accord with the clear principles as set out
under the Asset Management Strategy, which will continue to guide and
shape future use of the council’s property portfolio.

b. To continue to support the ongoing economic vibrancy of the city, to
protect and increase the income from the council’s commercial property
portfolio.

c. To dispose of surplus property with an emphasis on providing affordable
accommodation within the city; reduce the council’s financial obligations
and encourage regeneration and community involvement through the
use of its assets.

Background
Our Property Estate

20. The councils’ property estate (excluding housing and housing garages)
is large and extremely varied with ¢.1,300 assets with a value of c.
£396m (including schools) and generating an annual income of c.£6.8m.
The estate can generally be classified into four separate blocks as
follows;

e Commercial Portfolio

e Operational Estate

e Community Assets

e Surplus land for housing delivery



Page 23

21.Updates to housing delivery on surplus land were reported to Executive
in October 2025 and hence do not form part of this report. The other
three areas which are detailed within the next sections of this report
along with a further section summarising the work that has been
undertaken in using its assets to reduce its carbon footprint.

Options Analysis and Evidential Basis

A — The Commercial Portfolio
Composition of the Portfolio

22.The council has ¢.1,100 commercial legal agreements governing its
property portfolio. In total, the assets provide an annual rent roll of c.£6.9
million. The portfolio comprises retail, light industrial, office and
agricultural properties as well as the commercial lettings at West Offices
and leases of the land on the Coppergate Centre and York Racecourse
operate upon. Over the last decade, the council has made a number of
strategic acquisitions. This has included interests at Hospital Fields
Road, which has enabled housing development to be planned;
commercial property in Swinegate and Coney Street and by purchasing
the head lease interest in the Eco Business Centre.

23.The council has always focussed its commercial estate in York in order
to promote and support economic vibrancy and ensure the preservation
of historic buildings. Through its ownership of the estate the council
therefore, provides accommodation which helps in developing and
maintain the city’s economy, serving a broad role in meeting social
economic and environmental objectives such as regeneration and
ensuring the sustainability and vibrancy of the city centre.

24.The 2020 Asset Management Strategy was written during the Covid
period. The council was able to support its tenants through the period
by offering deferred rental payments and whilst the cost of living crisis
has followed Covid bringing considerable economic challenges, the
council’s property portfolio has remained robust, with high levels of
occupancy being achieved.

25.The graph below illustrates the composition of the assets which provide
for the majority of the council’s annual income generated from its asset



Page 24

base. These figures exclude minor agreements as well as operational
property such as school and community lettings

Asset Type by Annual Income

ommercial
Leisure

@ Agriculture
753,373

B Commercial Leisure
308,643 O Industrial

@ Misc

@ Office

O Retail

Office
2,825,721

Performance of the Portfolio

26.The council’s estate was assembled over a long period of time, often to
safeguard buildings at risk (the Shambles for example, from demolition)
or to prepare for large capital schemes. For example, the council
purchased a number of premises on Gillygate in the 1960’s for an
aborted inner ring road scheme. The city council’'s assets are well
occupied and deliver a good financial return, with the portfolio providing
a return of ¢.6.6%. This provides a considerable income which is an
important part of the council’s overall financial strategy.

27.The graph below shows the growth in commercial rental income since
2016, which has risen markedly over the period. The growth has been
achieved through maximising revenue from its assets, the acquisition of
assets as mentioned above, and through maximising the use of
operational assets and driving revenue from areas not required.
Particular success has been achieved at West Offices which is
discussed later in this report.




Page 25

Rental Income

2016 - 2025

£8,000,000
£7,000,000

£6,000,000

£5,000,000
£4,000,000
£3,000,000
£2,000,000
£1,000,000

£0

2016

2017 2018 2019 2020

2021

2023

2022 2024 2025

28.The previous iteration of the Asset Management Strategy set out a
number of opportunities for the commercial estate which have been
progressed and have been reported to Scrutiny Committee previously in
March 2024. A summary of those actions, along with property agreed to
be disposed of by Executive in July 2024, are listed below which concern

the commercial estate;

Action

Status

Agree to recommend to Full Council the
establishment of a capital budget of
approximately. £3.9 million, to fund the
acquisition of the head leasehold
interest of the Eco Centre, Amy
Johnson Way.

Agree to lease 29 Castlegate as part of
the commercial portfolio and agree to
the use of the existing capital budget of
£270,000 to undertake maintenance
repairs to the property.

Acquisition completed. Asset is
well occupied and provides a
financial return generally
commensurate with the overall
portfolio return.

Lease granted in April 2022 and
remains in situ to Work With
York. Capital works carried out
on budget




Page 26

Action

Status

Agree to lease the Guildhall Business
Centre to the University of York/York
Science Park

Agree that, were it to become available
for sale within seven years of the
transfer of Haxby Hall, to purchase the
existing Haxby ambulance station site
within the agreed budget.

Lease granted in April 2022 and
remains in situ.

Haxby Hall disposal completed.
Ambulance station remains
operational.

Agree to dispose of the council’s
shareholder interest in York Science
Park Ltd for c. £500k.

To dispose of land at Lingcroft Lane,
Naburn; and 2 former herdsman
cottages (103 Heslington Road and159
Mount View)

Former Network Rail Building, Holgate
Road

Sale of 22 The Avenue

Grant of 999 year leases for 5 No. 1 bed
flats at 28 & 45/47 Shambles.

Disposal completed.

The 2 herdsman’s cottage
leasehold sales are under offer to
leasehold purchasers. The land at
Lingcroft Lane is under review.

Disposal complete

Under offer to buyer

Under offer to leasehold

purchasers




Page 27

Opportunities for the Commercial Estate

Coney Street

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

Opportunities for the council to be pro-active in the York property market
are considered as they arise and reported to Members in accordance
with governance and delegations. One current opportunity which
requires an Executive decision is in regard to 25/27 Coney Street (see
location plan in Appendix).

The council received authority to purchase this asset from Executive in
November 2019, subsequently purchasing the asset in January 2020.
The property is let to retailer, Holland and Barrett. The rationale for
purchasing this asset was to act as a strategic lever in future
consideration of how the city centre would adapt to reflect the changing
and challenging retail picture. At the time of reporting, acquiring
ownership of the strategically placed asset in the centre of Coney Street
was considered to provide the opportunity to the council to shape further
discussions with neighbouring land owners and steer future direction,
rather than simply relying on the council’s powers as a statutory authority,

in accordance with the council’s “My City Centre” vision.

Since the purchase, other property located on Coney Street has been
purchased by the Helmsley Group, whom have subsequently sought
and attained planning permission for a significant redevelopment of
Coney Street. This is envisaged to comprise of a multi million pound
development which will provide a mixed use scheme, comprising retail
and upper floor leisure and student accommodation.

As landowner of 25 Coney Street, the council has made it clear of its
desire to see a riverside path form part of the development. Helmsley
have now attained planning consent for the scheme, planning reference
22/02525/FULM. An integral part of that scheme is to create a new
riverside path linking the existing City infrastructure to such, for the
benefit of residents and visitors.

We are advised that the Helmsley Group have spent in the region of c.
£1 million in fees in attaining the planning consent. Whilst Helmsley are
seeking development funding for the project, they hope to start
development later in 2026 and they are confident in the delivery of such.

The financial offer of the deal is contained within the confidential
appendix. The structure of the deal will see the council sell the entire
property to the Helmsley Group for a capital payment, paid upon



35.

36.

Page 28

completion. In addition, the Helmsley Group will deliver the council, as
part of the new development scheme, a newly refurbished ground floor
retail unit, with a basement, situated on the existing property’s ground
floor footprint. Helmsley will be fully responsible for all costs associated
with such and will lease the council this space back for 999 years at nil
rent. The council will then be able to lease this space out for a
commercial rent. The rationale for this capital and lease back
arrangement is that with the multi million pounds of development costs
invested in the street, it is anticipated that the value of assets in this
location will increase. In retaining an asset in this location, as part of the
new scheme, the council will benefit in having a retained interest in the
new scheme and be able to benefit in the income.

The council has sought independent valuation advice upon this proposal
and it is considered that the deal represents Market Value and indeed
represents a higher capital value than it paid for the asset in 2020.

Additionally, the Helmsley Group have agreed that in the legal transfer
documentation there will be a positive obligation to deliver the riverside
pathway. This is an example of the council using its assets in bringing
about regeneration to the city.

17 — 21 Piccadilly

37.

38.

17-21 Piccadilly (see site plan in Appendix) is the site of the former
Reynard’s Garage and is now the site of the hugely successful
Spark:York, a temporary pop-up container development hosting many
small, local, retail, food, and drink businesses. Spark have occupied the
site since 2017.

In accordance with a decision made by Executive in March 2022,
registered providers were approached to provide affordable housing on
the site and it was anticipated that the value of the site could provide
£500,000 on a 999 year lease basis. Despite soft test marketing
providing a reasonable response from registered providers to the
opportunity, when expressions of interest were subsequently invited,
only one expression of interest was made. Rising build costs and the
small nature of the site were cited as challenging issues which had put
would be bidders off. Spark York has proven to be popular and continues
to bring vibrancy and activity to Piccadilly. 18 out of 19 units are currently
occupied and the others are under offer, particularly appealing to start
up businesses. In addition, there are art studios, co working space and



39.

40.

Page 29

meeting rooms. Spark advise that 26 of their previous occupiers have
moved on as part of those businesses’ growth. They also estimate that
there is a £5m turnover from current businesses providing 68 equivalent
FTE jobs and attracting 400,000 visitors a year to the facility.

Spark currently pay a rental of £27,500 per annum and are not in any
rental arrears. The lease was renewed until November 2026 in
accordance with the Executive decision of November 2023. Spark have
been looking for an alternative site in the city and have looked at York
Central but this will not be ready to cater for any possible provision prior
to the expiry of their current lease. Given the success of Spark and the
previous lack of interest by registered providers in the affordable housing
proposition here, it is proposed that the current lease be extended until
such time as Spark find an alternative location. The timeline will be
controlled by limiting their tenure to the period in which they have
secured planning consent for the site, for which was granted a 5 year
extension under planning reference 25/01151/FULM in October 2025.
Spark will continue to pay the market rental value for the site, which will
be assessed at the time of any extension to their tenure. This will provide
further time to continue to work with Spark to ascertain if an alternative
venue within York could be suitable.

In line with previous decisions, any renewal of the tenancy will provide
that Spark must abide by all statutory controls which will necessitate
them in applying for an extended planning consent. Furthermore,
controls within the renewal lease, governing noise and issues of potential
disturbance would mirror any requirements from the statutory authority
permissions to ensure compliance to such given the close proximity of
residential accommodation.

Community Stadium — Lease of land for data centre to provide heat
offset for leisure facilities

41.

42.

The council have been approached by the operator of its leisure facilities
at the Community Stadium, Greenwich Leisure Limited (GLL), as to
whether permission could be granted to situate a data centre on land
within the complex (see location plan within the appendix). GLL have a
contract and lease with the council to manage the facility which ends in
November 2030, with a potential extension until November 2035.

The provider of the data centre, Deep Green, would build, operate and
source occupiers for the data centre providing that no costs were borne
by GLL nor the council. Deep Green would require a lease of the land
to build the facility in accordance with the planning permission it has



43.

44,

45.

46.

Page 30

secured on the land (Planning Ref 24/01946/FULM). The site currently
forms a grassed area between the leisure facilities’ car park and the
neighbouring karting centre and comprises approximately 0.135 acres,
excluding cable duct routes. (see location plan in Appendix).

Deep Green would build and lease out the planned 400 Kilowatt capacity
space within the data centre (see plan in appendix) and the excess heat
generated by the equipment and servers within the facility, through the
use of such, would be channelled into heating the swimming pool facility
at the Community Stadium complex operated by GLL.

Deep Green are developing a similar sized facility at Urmston, Trafford,
Manchester and estimate a saving in energy costs of £80,000 per annum
with a carbon reduction of 150 tonnes each year. Deep Green have
funding available from a partnership arrangement with the investment
arm of Octopus Energy and plan to roll out similar facilities nationally.
They believe the stadium site has the required grid capacity to enable
them to do this.

In order to justify the initial capital expenditure, Deep Green require a 20
year lease, taking this beyond GLL’s lease term. Itis proposed that Deep
Green will thus take a sub lease from GLL and a reversionary lease from
the council for the latter period, to provide them with a certainty of
occupation for that whole period.

The proposal will provide an estimated reduction of 1.4 GwH of gas
consumption required to heat the hot water for the leisure centre site.
Depending upon the occupancy of the data centre, it is estimated this
will provide a potential carbon reduction of c. 260 tonnes each year.

B- The Operational Estate

47.

48.

The comprehensive rationalisation of the council’s administrative
accommodation in 2012 culminated in the development of the council’s
headquarters at West Offices with its depot located at Hazel Court,
James Street.

West Offices is the largest operational asset the council owns, valuable
commercial income has been increased here through the pro-active
rationalisation of operational space within the building. Prior to Covid, the
council occupied the vast majority of the 4 storey building, utilised as its
head-quarters, whilst leasing out the top floor to partner organisations.
These were predominantly public sector based, such as the NHS, the



49.

50.

51.

52.

53.

54,

Page 31

council occupying 3 of the floors itself, with the ground floor in part,
providing the customer centre and café as well as office space.

The council has operated on a hybrid office working basis historically and
has maintained and increased this post Covid. This has enabled the
council to reduce its required floor space requirement. Its occupation for
office space has been reduced to one floor within the building plus use
of meeting rooms located across the building, whilst retaining the
customer centre and café at ground floor level.

The surplus space on the 2 floors has been let to both public and private
sector organisations, such as the Mayoral Combined Authority and
LNER. Income from West Offices has been increased to just short of £2
million per annum annually. Annual running costs excluding staff (but
including security and cleaning), amount to c. £2.6m a year currently for
the building, meaning that due to the success in leasing space, the cost
of the building to the council has significantly reduced.

From an economic development perspective, in attracting occupational
tenants to the building, the council has ensured that occupational tenants
are retained within York city centre, where otherwise they may have
located elsewhere, thus providing/ protecting jobs in the city.

Hazel Court is the council’s logistics headquarters, providing space for
its operational fleet. This has benefited through the provision of an EV
scheme constructed on site and which serves to power its electric
vehicles. Hazel Court also provides office space used operationally.

Remodelling the operational asset base in our communities has been a
long running theme of the portfolio. In recent years this has continued
and sales of assets progressed. The new library at Clifton has been
developed by the Council and the old library site and building sold. The
site of the former Haxby library has been sold and new library provision
provided at Oaken Grove community centre. The former elderly person’s
home at Oakhaven has been sold to realise a capital receipt and the
facility at Haxby Hall has been sold with a modern private owned facility
replacing it.

Whilst the operational estate has seen considerable rationalisation in the
past, thus providing the council with a slimmed down asset base, further
rationalisation work is recognised as being required to ensure the council
makes the best use if its assets with the resources it has. Future reports
will be taken to Executive to detail work which will be undertaken on the
remaining operational asset base for which the council has worked



Page 32

together using partnerships such as York Explore, GLL and York
Museum Trust. The Council will utilise its property assets in support and
have regard to the Heritage Programme as reported to the Combined
Executive Member Decision Session dated 4" November 2025, given
the importance of its heritage assets within the city.

C- Community Assets

55.

56.

S7.

The council own and directly operate only a handful of community
facilities based in communities, including, Clifton Community Hall and
Moor Lane Youth Centre. Over the years, considerable numbers of
council owned community assets have been transferred to the
community, where a community group are able to use the asset for
improved community or social outcomes. This process is most effective
when it is developed in partnership with communities, to develop shared
visions and collaborative proposals. We ensure that groups taking on the
responsibility for operating assets have the support and capability to do
this successfully. Each case is considered on its own merits having
regard to the business case and proposals submitted in support of such.

All the leases have transferred maintenance and repair responsibilities
to the community groups concerned for the duration of the respective
leases with associated revenue savings made by the council, if it were
to otherwise retain management and responsibility of the assets.

The Community Asset Transfer Policy was adopted by the council in
2007 in response to the Quirk Review set up by central government in
2006 to investigate future options for the increased community
management and ownership of assets, in particular looking at ways to
overcome barriers, taking into account the need to manage risk. The
Policy states that qualifying community groups must meet certain criteria,
which are set out as follows;

A. It must be the intention to open up the asset for the whole
community to have access and for a variety of uses and not just be a
specialist or single purpose group. There should also be a minimum
time (measured in hours per year) when the land and/or building is
open to the public

B. The community group must show that it is properly constituted and
Is sustainable in economic and social terms. It needs to show it will
have the capacity to manage and run the property that meets the
terms of any agreement.



58.

59.

60.

61.

Page 33

C. The aims of the group and its proposed use of the asset must
support one or more of the council’s priorities and objectives contained
in the Corporate Strategy and match the council’s strategic values.

D. Need for the project — including how the needs have been
identified, the outcomes for the project and how these outcomes will
meet the needs.

E. Partnership working — identify the partners, what each will bring to
the project, the experience, skills and capacity of the partners to
deliver the project.

Qualifying groups may be offered a lease for a term of up to 99 years, in
order that the tenant can apply for funding to support the use of the asset
and any work needed to repair or refresh the property. The lease term
is offered on a nil rent basis subject to the following conditions;

A.  The tenant has full responsibility for repairs and decoration and
for payment of all outgoings relating to the premises including
insurance business rates and utility costs

B.  The premises must be open for the public to use for a minimum
period each year

C. The tenant is restricted from transferring the lease

These conditions are included as specific covenants within the lease
granted by the council, as landlord, which also include a community use
agreement. The following community asset transfers have taken place
since 2017. All the leases have transferred maintenance and repair
responsibilities to the community groups concerned;

The bowling greens at West Bank Park, Glen Gardens, and Clarence
Gardens have been transferred to the respective clubs on 25 year
leases. Scarcroft Bowling Club and the Rl Bowling Club, Holgate have
been transferred on 30 year leases. The Hut, Clarence Gardens has
been transferred on a 99 year lease. Tang Hall Community Centre has
been transferred on a 30 year lease. Seventeen of the Council’s
allotments across the authority have been transferred to The Officials of
York Allotments Charitable Incorporated Organisation on 7 year leases
and a 99 year lease granted to Rufforth and Knapton Parish Council for
allotments.

Furthermore, Poppleton Community Centre has been transferred to
Poppleton Community Trust on a lease of 99 years, whilst another 99
year lease was granted for land at Clifton Without to Clifton Without



62.

63.

Page 34

Parish Council. A lease of 25 years was granted to Rowntree Park tennis
Club for the courts and pavilion and a lease of Mayfields South to Friends
of York Railway Pond and Reserve was granted for 25 years.

In relation to youth building assets, the 68 Youth and Community Centre
closed just before Covid due to its poor condition and this site is now part
of the Housing delivery programme. Moor Lane Youth Centre remains
a Council run centre that is home to the Youth Justice Service, Choose
2 Youth and a variety of youth clubs that operate on an evening.

As was reported in the previous Asset Management Strategy, 153 acres
of agricultural land had been purchased to create a community
woodland, combining this with council assets in the adjacency to provide
a site of ¢.180 acres. This land has now been leased to Forestry England
who have paid for the planting of the woodland and pay for the costs of
managing it in line with a management plan with the council, which is
reviewed annually.

Opportunities for the Operational & Community Estate

A number of further opportunities are presented and these are set out below;

a) York Allotments

64.

65.

66.

In  November 2017 York Allotment Charitable Incorporated
Organisation (YACIO) took on the management of the city council
allotments on a 7-year trial basis at a peppercorn rent (Bustardthorpe
Allotments was omitted as it was already self-managed by tenants).
The history of the transfer can be found in a report to the Executive 19"
October 2017. A list of the allotments is contained within the appendix.

Over the last seven years YACIO have successfully managed 16 sites
with over 1,500 tenants in occupation. This has been carried out
through a voluntary board of trustees and a paid administrative
function. Each trustee has taken on a specific responsibility e.g. legal
matters, repair and maintenance, health and safety. The organisation
has been very stable and of the original 5 trustees, all are still in that
role with 3 new trustees joining the Board.

The organisation is governed by Charity Commission rules, holds an
Annual General Meeting at which paid up tenants have a say on policy
matters and elect Trustees. Day to day management is supported by
volunteer site secretaries who show prospective tenants around plots
and report repair and maintenance issues. YACIO’'s web site



Page 35

https://yorkallotments.org/ provides more details on all the above as well
as published minutes, their quarterly newsletter and news items, Tenants
Handbook and gardening advice.

67. Administrative achievements include.
e updated Tenancy Agreement to make it more effective and relevant.
e improved administration including enabling annual invoice payment to
be made online.
e hired a part time administrator, soon to be replaced by two part time
employees.
e developed a dedicated website.

68. Development actions include.

carried out a programme of site improvements.

initiated a programme of clearing derelict plots.

began a programme of tree management.

organised several training sessions for tenants on specific topics.
re-established the annual best plot competition.

69. Financially YACIO have
e managed finances effectively running at a small surplus through most
operating years.
e avoided rent increases to the allotment holders for the first six years.
e updated the concession policy.

70. Looking forwards YACIO, subject to the lease being agreed, will develop
a longer-term strategic plan with tenants and other stakeholder to set
priorities, provisional areas of focus are likely to include:

e enhance security and reduce vandalism and anti-social behaviour

e a programme of installing compost or similar non-mains toilet facilities
at larger sites to make allotments more inclusive

e create more accessible plots

e a programme of installing communal tool stores that can be used by
tenants instead of plot sheds.

e create more communal areas on sites for social activities and
community building

e investment in better drainage and rainwater collection

71. In order to provide the YACIO with a longer term provision and given the
success they have achieved, they have asked for new 35-year lease to
be granted at peppercorn rental which is recommended to be entered
into.


https://yorkallotments.org/

72.

Page 36

If the lease is not renewed the service would have return to in house
management. This would require the appointment of an allotment officer
and creation of administrative support to issue bills and tenancy
agreements. When the service was transferred to YACIO income from
rents did not cover the councils costs.

b) Bustardthorpe Allotments

73.

74.

75.

Bustardthorpe allotments have been managed by Bustardthorpe
Allotment Association (BAA) since they took on the self-management of
the site some 23 years ago. (see location plan in Appendix). This was
initially on a trial basis; at a time when the site was semi derelict and only
a third occupied. BAA self-management arrangements predate the
wider Council arrangement with YACIO by over a decade and the group
wishes to retain their identity (this does not stop the two-organisations
cooperating on matters such as waiting lists). Since then BAA have
operated under a series of leases, the most recent was granted in 2012
for a period of 25 years. BAA currently pay an annual rental of £835pa,
albeit they have been paying zero rent for the last few years as they have
paid for re-piping of the water supply and hence the rent has been offset
against such.

Until the end of 2024 oversight of the operation was provided by a board
of trustees, with a management committee responsible for a day-to-day
operation. In January 2025 the organisation became a registered charity
(no: 1211930) and changed their name to Bustardthorpe Allotments
Association CIO (BAACIO) with the site now managed by the charity
trustees. The site has been fully occupied for several years and now has
a waiting list

BAA have caried out numerous site improvements including fencing, tree
maintenance, car parking and renewing the complete underground water
supply across the whole site. They have also supported tenants through
a new storage facility, replace the toilet, increased the size of the meeting
/ social space, development and management of therapeutic spaces
such as the Russell Lupin Garden, Community Orchards and Nature
Reserve benefitting not only the plot holders and their families but also
residents and staff at Knavesmire School. BAACIO have also developed
links with and actively supported the Collective Sharehouse. They
arrange free provision of wood, manure and wood chip and the
development of on-site cultivated plants for sale in shop. In 2025



76.

77.

Page 37

BAACIO was successful in getting a grant from Micklegate Ward for an
irrigation system for the polytunnels where these plants are grown.

Oversight of the operation provided by a board of trustees, with a
management committee responsible for a day-to-day operation. The site
has been fully occupied for several years and now has a waiting list.

BAA have now asked for their current lease to be terminated, and for a
new 35 year lease to be granted at peppercorn rental to bring them in
line with recent Community Asset Transfers, given they are the only
allotment management arrangement whom pay a rental. A location plan
Is provided in the appendix.

Rowntree Park Assets

78.

79.

80.

81.

There are a number of Rowntree Park assets which are the subject of
discussion in this section of the report (see location plan within the
appendix). This covers York Canoe Club, Rowntree Park Lodge and a
store/ garage on the southern boundary of the park.

York Canoe Club (YCC) is a community adventure sports club drawing
membership from York and the surrounding area and have used
Rowntree Park as a base for their activities for the last 8 years. The club
iIs focused on white water kayaking but supports all canoeing and
kayaking disciplines. The club has regular membership of around 80 with
a further 50 seasonal members. Further information can be found at
https://www.yorkcanoeclub.co.uk/.

YCC provides a structured coaching pathway which develops paddlers
from absolute beginners to competent white-water kayakers. This
includes: the beginner’s course, introduction to white water, coaching on
trips on flat and white water and a development and mentoring structure
to become club coaches and leaders. The club holds a wide range of
high-quality equipment to underpin this programme which come with
storage needs.

Currently YCC use both the tennis pavilion and part of the Lodge
basement for equipment storage within the park. Both locations have
limitations for equipment which can be both heavy to move and wet from
use. Working with officer’s, options to use part of the existing park
maintenance depot have been developed and a 15 year lease is sought
for this space at a peppercorn rental. A location plan is provided in the
appendix and includes internal space of some 25m? in what is an unused
mess room / store (parks staff have not been site based for several


https://www.yorkcanoeclub.co.uk/

82.

Page 38

years) and some 35m2 of external space in the adjacent yard. In both
areas the club wish to install racking and storage facilities which will be
fully funded by the club and work carried out by its members.

The club has lacked a permanent home since inception and has been
saving for an opportunity like this for over 20 years in the knowledge that
any permanent base would need investment, internal and external
racking for example. YCC have sufficient funds to cover such expenses
as well as being able to draw on professional and technical expertise
from within its membership.

Store/ Garage

83. The Rowntree Park Friends (Friends) whom the council work with in

84.

1S

=3

providing a voluntary service to maintain the park, wish to take on a 15
year lease for a park “store/ garage”, this building is situated next to the
Parks toilets near the Terry Avenue main entrance. Historically it was
used as a store and is no longer needed by the council’s public realm
team. The appeal for the Friends is that although closer to the river it is
considerably higher than the Lodge basement store currently in use. This
means garden tools, wheelbarrows etc, which have suffered from flood
damage most years, will be better protected. It is also closer to the areas
the Friends care for including the Central Avenue planting beds.

A location plan is provided in the appendices. The building has an
internal space of some 18m?. The Friends plan to repaint the interior,
install shelving and work benches; all at their cost.

& 2"9 Floors of the Lodge

85.

86.

In March 2021 the Executive agreed to “agree in principle a 99 year lease
of the upper floors of Rowntree Park Lodge, a former park keeper’s
residence, to the Friends of Rowntree Park and to delegate the final
decision to grant that lease to the Executive Member for Finance and
Performance subject to the agreement of a funded business case at an
Executive Member Decision Session in the next 12 months, or at a date
agreed by the Executive Member for Finance and Performance”

Following this offer the Friends set about seeking funding for the project
and where successful in obtaining several small grants to support their
aims of creating a community space and have progress as far as
obtaining planning permission for the re-development of the upper floors
ref 24/00583/FUL. Work continues seeking the larger grants required to



87.

Page 39

deliver the project and in parallel both parties are working on the draft
documentation.

In the interim the Friends wish to use a couple of the rooms on the upper
floors of the Lodge as a store for their educational material, events and
promotional literature, and archive. It is proposed this progresses under
an annual licence arrangement whilst the long-term future of the property
IS resolved.

Lodge Garden

88.

89.

The original Executive decision in March 2021 to lease the upper floors
of the Lodge to the Friends omitted the Lodge Garden from the approved
space. The garden is primarily used by the Friends to support their
horticultural activities by growing on plants for transplant into the park,
overwintering plants which would be damaged if the park flooded, and
for the storage of equipment and materials. In doing so their activities
have been supported by Environment and Community Officers.

The planning application for the Lodge also include potential
outbuildings. It is therefore proposed to add the garden to the area
leased to the Friends subject to the same conditions being met to
proceed with the Lodge lease. A location plan is provided at annex X.

Land at York Road, Strensall

90.

91.

York Road is an area of approximately 750 m? open space of set back
from the main road into village. A location plan is provided within the
appendix. Strensall Parish Council aspire to develop the area as a
community garden and wish to formalise their involvement in the area
with a long-term lease of 70 years at a peppercorn rental which would
match the remainder of the term of another lease of land which Strensall
Parish Council already hold.

The land is owned by the council by virtue of a transfer of the land from
the residential developer, whom developed the adjacent residential
housing. The council’s public realm team maintain this area. There is a
covenant on the title to the property restricting the land for being used as
public open space. This covenant will transfer to the Parish, controlling
the use.



Page 40

Lease of Land to Choose-2, Hull Road Park

92.

93.

94.

95.

96.

Choose-2 are a not-for-profit social enterprise “working with and
supporting children, young people and adults with disabilities and
additional needs in York and  North Yorkshire’, see
https://choose2.co.uk/about/ .

Since 2017 Choose 2 have run a café from a modular building in Hull
Road Park. Originally the modular building was rented on a trial basis by
the council from a local supplier with funds provided by Hull Road Ward
Committee. At the end of the three-year trial Choose-2 were able to
secure on going use direct from the building’s supplier.

Choose 2 have temporary planning permission for the building until
November 2025 and have now commenced the process of seeking a
renewal of such.

To formalise the position, we propose to grant a lease of the footprint of
the site where the modular building is situated. The lease will be for a
term of 10 years at a peppercorn rental, reflecting the modular style of
building and Choose 2 will be fully responsible for the building and its
upkeep. This arrangement will be subject to Choose 2 securing planning
permission. A location plan is provided within the appendix.

In October 2025, Executive agreed a £750k park fund that will be utilised
to improve parks across the city. It is anticipated that s106 money will
take the Parks Investment Programme budget to around £925k. The key
ambitions of the programme are to improve play opportunities,
accessibility and inclusivity to the Council parks and open spaces. The
value that park building play was also recognised in this programme, and
when combined with the actions set out in this report, will ensure these
community assets remain places that encourage and support healthy,
sustainable lives and communities.

D- Carbon Reduction

97.

98.

The council has set an ambition to be net zero carbon by 2030. The
operational estate accounts for over half of our direct carbon
emissions, primarily through the use a fossil fuels to heat buildings.

Principle ‘h’ of this Strategy makes a commitment to operate our
estate sustainably, efficiently and dynamically to support the effective


https://choose2.co.uk/about/

Page 41

delivery of council services and achieve net zero carbon by 2030 on
our estate.

99. We will do this by:

Ongoing monitoring and metering to better understand and
manage our resource use

Changes to the building fabric to improve thermal efficiency
and reduce energy usage

Replace fossil fuel heating with renewable alternatives where it
Is economical to do so

Install renewable energy generation to reduce our reliance on
the grid

Switch to low carbon grid supplied energy where required
Offset emissions through delivery of local and high quality,
nature-based solutions

100. Our approach will follow the energy hierarchy of:

Be lean — reduce the amount of energy required through
behaviour change and building design and fabric
improvements

Be clean — use efficient appliances and low carbon energy
sources where possible

Be green — generate renewable energy where we can and
ensure that our energy supply is as low carbon as possible

Use less energy

Supply energy efficiently

Renewable and low
carbon energy

Monitoring:



Page 42

101.Energy usage across the corporate estate is reported annually as part
of the council’s Corporate Emissions Reporting. Emissions associated

with gas consumption across our corporate estate have reduced by
26% since 2019.

Gas Costand Emissions2017-2025
£1,400,000 2500
£1,200,000

2000
£1,000,000

£800,000 00
£600,000 1000
£400,000
00
£200,000
£ 0

2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 202122 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

-
1]

Gas Cost (£)
Emissions (tCO2e)

4]

Reporting Year

Gas Cost M GastCO2e

Fabric improvements:

102. Improvements to building fabric and appliances contribute to reducing
demand and efficient use of energy across our estate.

103. We have undertaken a comprehensive LED lighting improvement
programme at West Offices and Hazel Court, with funding from the York
and North Yorkshire Combined Authority Net Zero Fund.

Replace fossil fuels:

104.With support from the Heat Network Delivery Unit at the Department of
Energy Security and Net Zero, the council has carried out a heat
network zoning map, with the potential to designate areas of the city for
future heat network deployment. These networks could provide low
carbon heat to council buildings, replacing existing fossil fuel systems.

105.As detailed earlier, the council and its leisure centre operator
Greenwich Leisure Limited are proposing to partner with Deep Green
to provide low carbon heat via the locating of a new data centre at the



Page 43

York Stadium leisure complex. Waste heat generated from the data
centre will be piped into the centre, providing low carbon heat for the
building and swimming pool.

Renewable energy generation:

106. The council have partnered with Solar for Schools (SfS), which is an
organisation providing renewable energy and energy education to
schools on their own school site. SfS design, develop, install, and take
care of operations and maintenance for the lifecycle of the system (25
years) at no cost to the school or the council., In York there are currently
11 schools that have been provided solar arrays through SfS with a mix
of council maintained, academies and private schools. In total, over
1.2MW of new rooftop solar has been installed as through the
partnership.

107. The council is investigating the potential to utilise the capped landfill
site at Harewood Whin to generate renewable energy. An outline
business case for up to 35MW of ground mounted solar has been
approved, with the full business case scheduled for 2027 for
consideration. If delivered, the renewable energy generated could supply
council operations through a power purchase agreement.

108. The council is utilising grant funding awarded from the Mayoral
Renewable Fund and Great British Energy to install rooftop solar at sites
across our portfolio. This includes Yearsley Swimming Pool, Acomb
Library, Moor Lane Youth Centre, Elvington School, St Mary’s School,
Carr Infants School and the Knavesmire Pavillion.

Green electricity:

109. Since April 2020, the council have purchased 100% renewable
electricity, reducing the council’s emissions by 2,102 tCOze this year.
This energy is certified by Renewable Energy Guarantees of Origin
(REGO) certificates, which provide evidence that a specific amount of
electricity has been generated from renewable sources.

110.Whilst electricity prices have risen nationally over the past three years
due to international circumstances, the council’s electricity consumption
has been gradually decreasing, due to estate rationalisation and
improvements to our buildings, see graph below.



Page 44

Buildings Consumption, Cost and Emissions from 2017-2025
9,000,000 2,500
8,000,000

7,000,000 2,000

6,000,000
1,500
5,000,000

4,000,000 R TR SR M o e s e = e e .
1,000

H H R || .

2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25

Reporting Year

3,000,000

2,000,000

Cost (£) and Consumption (kWh)

1,000,000

0

kWh mmmmm Cost ==@== Actual CO2e == == Non-renewable

Offset:

111. The council has used its assets to create a new woodland, which opened in
2024. The planting of nearly 2,000 trees at the site are expected to generate
18,500 carbon credits over the next 50 years. These credits can be used to
offset emissions from the council’s corporate activities.

112.0ther opportunities to generate carbon credits and enhance biodiversity
across our corporate estate are being explored through the national
demonstrator Local Investment in Natural Capital project, funded by the
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs.

Future workflows

113.In September 2025, the City of York Council was awarded £216,000 for the
provision of rooftop solar at specific locations across its estate. The sites
selected that were deemed the most viable for delivery in the timescales-

Emissions (tCO,e)



Page 45

« Yearsley Swimming Pool
. Joseph Rowntree School
« Acomb Explore Library

114.Collectively, these three projects are projected to generate over 408,000 kWh
of renewable energy annually, saving approximately 85 tCO.e and saving up
to £100,000 from energy bills each year.

115.The council continue to identify decarbonisation priorities through the
creation of Heat Decarbonisation Plans (HDP) for individual sites. Using
funding from the Low Carbon Skills Fund (LCSF) and North East and
Yorkshire Public Estate Decarbonisation Programme (NEYPED). The council
have produced heat decarbonisation plans across 37 corporate sites. These
sites include, 22 schools and 5 leisure facilities.

116.The purpose of a HDP is to provide an organisation with a pathway to
reducing greenhouse gas emissions from building use to net-zero. This
typically means reducing or eliminating the use of fossil fuels on site, which
are typically associated with providing heating and hot water. The HDPs may
also suggest improvements to use electricity more efficiently onsite for
instance through LED lighting upgrades and Solar PV.

117.Working with the Climate Change team, work underway to establish a project
proposal to focus on the development of an estate-wide decarbonisation
strategy and spend-to-save decarbonisation model. The proposed project
would consider all assets within the Commercial, Operational and
Community estates, including land, defining a strategy to prioritise assets and
technologies to deliver the most decarbonisation impact.

118.The strategy will consider and define suitable methodologies to determine
project viability, priority, and progression, considering applicability for several
decarbonisation technologies to maximise individual sites energy savings
that could be derived from capital investment. The project is proposed as an
initial 12-month timeline, with £100k funding to determine the Estate
Decarbonisation Strategy.

Consultation Analysis

119. The Coney Street regeneration has planning consent under reference
22/02525FULM.
Spark CIC have obtained planning consent in October 2026 for 5 years
the Spark facility on the site under reference 25/01151/FULM.



120.

121.

122.

Page 46

Deep Green have obtained planning consent for the proposed scheme
at the Community stadium under reference 24/01151/FULM.

The disposals involving property at Rowntree Park; York Road Strensall
and Hull Road Park involve a loss of open space and will have to be
advertised in accordance with the advice contained within the legal
implications section of this report. Any objections to the loss of open
space will be reported to the Executive Member for Finance,
Performance, Major Projects, Human Rights, Equality & Inclusion for
further consideration.

The leases being offered have all be discussed with the applicants and
their comments reflected in the report.

Organisational Impact and Implications

Financial
There are several key financial implications arising from the
recommendations in this report. These are summarised as follows:

Commercial Estate

The recommended sale of 25 Coney Street will generate a capital receipt
that is estimated in the confidential annex. General fund capital receipts
will be used to minimise the need to borrow against future capital
programme spend and thereby reducing the impact on the revenue
budget from the cost of borrowing. This will therefore support the
revenue budget and limit revenue savings.

For 17-21 Picadilly, the extension of the current lease will result in rental
receipts that support the Council’s revenue budget. The option to sell
and realise a capital receipt can be revisited at a future date when the
market has refreshed.

The data centre proposal for the Community Stadium provides ongoing
lease benefits to CYC. For the duration of the contract with the current
leisure services provider, GLL, the heat offset will result in energy cost
savings for the heating of the swimming pool on site. The utility risk
share mechanism in the current contract will ensure that an element of
the saving will be passed to CYC.



123.

124.

Page 47

Community Assets

The peppercorn rent proposals limit financial risk to CYC, in particular
the two allotments leases. The operation of the allotments by an external
provider results in an ongoing service to local residents without cost to
the Council. As further opportunities arise over the life of this Asset
Strategy, finance will review and consider the financial implications at
each stage.

Human Resources (HR)

None

Legal

The various transactions and projects covered in this Asset Management
Strategy will have various legal implications for the council which will
need to be reviewed, considered and advised upon in detail by the legal
team on a case-by-case basis as and when they are brought forward.

With regard to the loss of public open space proposed within this Asset
Management Strategy, section 123 of the Local Government Act 1972
gives the council power to dispose (including by granting a lease) of
land/property (including for less than open market value/best
consideration) without needing specific consent from the Secretary of
State for Housing, Communities and Local Government provided that the
Council is satisfied that:

(i) the purpose of the disposal will facilitate the improvement of the
economic, environmental or social well-being of the council’s area

and

(ii) the difference between the price/rent being obtained by the council
and open market value/best consideration is less than £2 million

Even where a specific proposal to dispose of land for less than the best
consideration falls within the terms of the general consent, the council
should comply with usual and prudent commercial practices, including
obtaining the view of a professionally qualified valuer as to the likely
amount of the undervalue.

For the purposes of Section 123 of that Act ‘open space’ is usually land
which falls into any of the following three categories:

(a) used by the general public for recreation



125.

126.

127.

128.

129.

Page 48

(b) land laid out as a park/pleasure ground
(c) disused burial ground

The disposals involving property at Rowntree Park, York Road Strensall
and Hull Road Park involve a loss of open space and will be subject to
this process.

Procurement

Whilst there are no direct procurement implications relating to the report
itself, should any areas following the strategy require procurement, all
works and/or services must be procured via a compliant, open,
transparent, and fair process in accordance with the council’s Contract
Procedure Rules and where applicable, the Procurement Act 2023.
Further advice regarding the procurement process and development of
procurement strategies must be sought from the Commercial
Procurement team.

Health and Wellbeing , Environment and Climate

The work undertaken and analysis of such is contained within the report.
Affordability

The use of Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) as the primary driver for
selecting projects should help towards providing improving life chances.
Many community assets provide facilities, some free of charge such as
libraries which gives access to facilities and services locally reducing
other costs e.g travel and digital support.

Equalities and Human Rights

No implications. See EIA in Appendix.

Data Protection and Privacy

As there is no personal data, special categories of personal data or

criminal offence data being processed, there is no requirement to
complete a data protection impact assessment (DPIA).



130.

131.

132.

Page 49

Communications

The actions set out within this strategy help to demonstrate the council's
focus on financial sustainability and climate, which are part of the core
focus of the council's communications strategy (subject to
ratification). Communications work may be required to support new
commercial opportunities or to engage with relevant communities
around the future of some sites and agreed approaches.

Economy

The property portfolio plays both a key role in providing commercial
accommodation to businesses in the local economy and provides
opportunities to bring about regeneration within the city. Assets have
been and will continue to be managed in attaining such

Risks and Mitigations

The report details a number of proposed transactions. There is a risk
that these transactions may not ultimately come to fruition as
negotiations to formalise them is a requirement. The council’s in house
legal and property advisors will undertake the necessary due diligence
in furthering these negotiations, in consultation with the relevant
Directors, with a view to successful conclusion of such.

Wards Impacted

All

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Nick Collins Debbie Mitchell

Head of Property Director of Finance

Services

Tel 552167



Page 50

Report X
Approved

Specialist Implications Officer(s) List information for all

Financial
Patrick Looker
Assistant Director of Finance

Legal
Chris Coss
Legal Manager

Shaun Gibbons
Head of Carbon Reduction

Dave Meigh
Public Realm Operations Manager

Sam Blyth
Head of City Strategy and Corporate Programme

Andy Laslett
Strategic Services Manager

Wards Affected All

For further information please contact the authors of the report
Appendices

A — Location Plan 25/27 Coney Street

B - Location Plan 17-21 Piccadilly

C - Location Plan Community Stadium

D - List of Allotments

E - Location Plan Bustardthorpe Allotments
F - Location Plan Land at Rowntree Park




Page 51

G - Location Plan Land at York Road, Strensall
H - Location Plan Land at Hull Road Park
| - Equalities Impact Assessment

Confidential Appendix
A — Financial Analysis & Market Valuation Report — 25/27 Coney Street

For further information please contact the author of the report

List of Abbreviations
None

Background Papers
Executive November 2025 — Neighbourhood Model, Implementation Phase

Executive Combined Member Decision session 4" November 2025 — Heritage
Programme

Executive October 2025 Delivering More Affordable Housing in York — Update
on the Housing Delivery Programme

Executive 18 July 2024 Update on the Housing Delivery Programme and the
Disposal of Surplus Sites

Executive 26 November 2020 - Update on the Asset Management Strategy

Executive 28 November 2019 - Establishing an investment budget for a strategic
commercial property acquisition

Executive 19" October 2017 — Future Management of Allotments



This page is intentionally left blank



Unit 25-27 Coney Street,

© KM

Asset & Property Management

Asset & Property

Management




This page is intentionally left blank



CCCCCCC

2 YORK 17 - 21 Piccadilly, York. wede

Drawing No.

sssss & Property Management




This page is intentionally left blank



KATHRYN AVENUE
1

[ ] [1]- Stadium
e e Leigure Complex -

/—
oyt

LNER Communif ity Stadium Sports
Stand Court
El Sub Sta ESS
|:| Qg
0 ]
|:| |:| ‘£| ESS
J—
LTwr
28 =
‘ —
[y
Vangarde Shopping Park
< o o o
ca ]

s
helter
Car Park Post
Vehicle
Park And Rid
(Park And Ride) Charging
site s

.

— N
ZN CITY OF . . .
YORK Community Stadium - Location Plan w<¢>5
bq COUNCIL
S
Property & Assets | | Scale:1:2,500 Date: 01 Dec 2025 Drawn by: LBB 0 25 50 100 Meters
I Y Y N IS T T

Management

© Crown copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey: AC0000822532




This page is intentionally left blank



Allotment List

YACIO managed;
Bootham

Carr

Fulford Cross
Glen / Scrope
Green Lane
Hempland Lane
Hob Moor
Holgate

Hospital Fields
Howe Hill

Low Moor

New Lane, Strensall
Scarcroft
Wigginton Road

Wigginton Terrace

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank



Micklegate Stray

Knavesmire

N

Allotment Gardens

T9 abed

YORK

> 3y
“ZE® ciTy oF
K COUNCIL

Bustardthorpe Allotments - Location Plan

Property & Assets
Management

Scale: 1:2,500 Date: 26 Nov 2025 Drawn by: LBB

© Crown copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey: AC0000822532

100 Meters
|




This page is intentionally left blank



© Crown copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey: AC0000822532

[
William . 85m 7
House Car Park >
§ &
[J
G
CLEMENTHORPE
/] ;
Depot—» 5 S
Lodge Garden $
Pond @
Play Area
Rowntree Park
U
S
/ '3
7@
o
FB 0 w
55\
Well House@””‘
Garage
8.5m é“’?
\ Tennis Court {é: /
[ \5’ 5\\5\
1'77 / Bowling Green //{\
Zj ‘\"" CITY OF N
YORK Land at Rowntree Park - Location Plan . ¢ .
b. COUNCIL
S
Property & Assets | | Scale:1:1,250 Date: 01 Dec 2025 Drawn by: LBB 0 125 25 50 Meters
Management Lo 11 L




This page is intentionally left blank



i
)
1

xT

>

=z

0

>
>§fr11
Q ~

Land at York road, Strensall - Location Plan

Property & Assets
Management

Scale: 1:1,250 Date: 26 Nov 2025 Drawn by: LBB 0 125 25

50 Meters
|




This page is intentionally left blank



LB

El Sub Sta

Tennis Court

o

il T

Osbaldwick Beck B

Playground

% Lo, 7 ) st sta @ . ) @@ N
N N
YORK Land at Hull Road Park - Location Plan W<¢E
p COUNCIL
s
Property & Assets Scale:1:1,250 Date: 01 Dec 2025 Drawn by: LBB 0 125 25 50 Meters
Management oo _ _ _ Lo 11 L
rown copyright and database rights 2025 Ordnance Survey: AC0000822532




This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council

Equalities Impact Assessment

Who is submitting the proposal?

Directorate:

Finance

Service Area:

Property Services

Name of the proposal :

Update on the Asset Management Strategy - 2026 to 2031

Lead officer:

Nick Collins

Date assessment completed:

28.11.25

Names of those who contributed to the assessment :

Name

Job title

Organisation

Area of expertise

Dave Meigh

Public Realm operations
Manager

CYC

CYC Public Realm & Open
Spaces

EIA 02/2021

69 abed



Step 1 — Aims and intended outcomes

What is the purpose of the proposal?
Please explain your proposal in Plain English avoiding acronyms and jargon.

The report sets out progress against the delivery of the Asset Management Strategy for the Council for the
period 2020-2025, as reported to Executive in November 2020. The report provides an update on the
performance of the Council’s commercial portfolio of property, which provides a vital source of income in
financing Council services. The report provides updates on work flows and sets out the Strategy for a further

5 year period to 2031, to benefit both social outcomes and financial performance, arising from the Council’s
land and property assets.

1.2

Are there any external considerations? (Legislation/government directive/codes of practice etc.)

A number of the proposals effect public open space within the meaning of Section.122/123 of the Local
Government Act 1972.

EIA 02/2021

0/ abed



1.2

1.3 Who are the stakeholders and what are theJrintergsts?

Commercial property tenants, users of Council-operational property and residents from the surrounding
wards and areas. This includes stakeholders of parther community organisations such as the Friends of
Rowntree Park.

Interest in each property varies by site and activity.

1.4 What results/outcomes do we want to achieve and for whom? This section should explain what

outcomes you want to achieve for service users, staff and/or the wider community. Demonstrate how the
proposal links to the Council Plan and other corporate strategies and plans

The desired outcome is to ensure that our assets are utilised to benefit our residents through generating
income and helping pay for services, through the provision of assets to deliver services and achieve council
policies. The proposals accord with;

Health and wellbeing: a health generating city for children and adults through the utilisation of the council
assets to create a more sustainable environment that benefits from better use of community space whilst
co-locating with partners to drive and improve efficiency in service provision

Economy: a fair, thriving, green economy for all through regeneration opportunities and using our assets
to drive economic opportunity

Housing: increasing the supply of affordable housing — through using our assets to increase the supply
of affordable housing in York

Sustainability: cutting carbon, enhancing the environment of our future — via using our estate as an
exemplar of creating efficient, sustainable services

EIA 02/2021

T/ abed




Step 2 — Gathering the information and feedback

2.1 What sources of data, evidence and consultation feedback do we have to help us understand the

impact of the proposal on equality rights and human rights? Please consider a range of sources,
including: consultation exercises, surveys, feedback from staff, stakeholders, participants, research reports,
the views of equality groups, as well your own experience of working in this area etc.

Source of data/supporting evidence

Reason for using

Property Services staff

Long term knowledge of assets and relationship with occupational
tenants

Public Realm staff

Long term knowledge of open space and public realm sites with
relationship with community groups such as “Friends of Parks” groups

Strategic Services staff

Local connections.

EIA 02/2021

2/ abed



Step 3 — Gaps in data and knowledge

3.1 What are the main gaps in information and understanding of the impact of your proposal? Please
indicate how any gaps will be dealt with.

Gaps in data or knowledge Action to deal with this

To be identified against each of the recommended Scheme specific consultation where required such and

schemes

use of advertising and consulting in accordance with
Section.122/123 of the Local Government Act 1972.

Step 4 — Analysing the impacts or effects.

4.1 Please consider what the evidence tells you about the likely impact (positive or negative) on people
sharing a protected characteristic, i.e. how significant could the impacts be if we did not make any
adjustments? Remember the duty is also positive — so please identify where the proposal offers
opportunities to promote equality and/or foster good relations.

Equality Groups
and
Human Rights.

Key /Impacts Positive (+) | High (H)
Negative (-) | Medium (M)
Neutral (0) | Low (L)

Age

A purpose of this programme of work is + L

e to help secure good outcomes for children and younger
people in their formative years through improved play
opportunities

EIA 02/2021

¢/ abed



e to aid mobility and rest opportunities for all ages as
part of footpath rebuilds, seating replacement and
improvements

The successful of the programme should directly deliver
positive outcomes multiple generations.

Disability A purpose of this programme of work is specifically deliver +
e more accessible play opportunities
e remove physical barriers to access and improve the
green space path network
e site based improvement establish through consultation
and scheme development
Gender The proposal does not exclude different genders. + and -
Investment in some games court activities may reinforce
gender biases.
Gender The proposal is not expected to impact on this characteristic. 0
Reassignment
Marriage and civil | The proposal is not expected to impact on this characteristic. 0
partnership
Pregnancy The proposal is not expected to impact on this characteristic. 0
and maternity
Race The proposals aim to be inclusive for all children and adults 0
regardless of race. This will be tested through consultation
and input ahead of scheme delivery.
| Religion | The proposal is not expected to impact on this characteristic. | 0

EIA 02/2021

) abed



and belief

Sexual The proposal is not expected to impact on this characteristic.
orientation

Other Socio- Could other socio-economic groups be affected e.g.
economic groups | carers, ex-offenders, low incomes?

including :

Carer Schemes recommended to progress should strengthen

support for children and those people that care for them.

Low income
groups

The use of Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) as the
primary driver for selecting projects should help towards
providing improving life chances.

Veterans, Armed
Forces
Community

The proposal is not expected to impact on this characteristic

Other

Impact on human
rights:

List any human
rights impacted.

e Equality and non-discrimination — “The enjoyment of the
rights and freedoms set forth... shall be secured without
discrimination on any ground such as sex, race, colour,
language, religion, political or other opinion, national or
social origin, association with a national minority,
property, birth or other status” HUMAN RIGHTS ACT,
ARTICLE 14

e Decent standard of living - “...the present Covenant
recognizes the right of everyone to an adequate standard

EIA 02/2021

G) abed



of living for himself and his family.” INTERNATIONAL
COVENANT ON ECONOMIC, SOCIAL AND CULTURAL
RIGHTS, ARTICLE 11

Health and social care - “The general duty of a local
authority... is to promote that individual’s well-being”
CARE ACT 2014

EIA 02/2021

9/ abed



High impact
(The proposal or process is very equality
relevant)

There is significant potential for or evidence of adverse impact
The proposal is institution wide or public facing

The proposal has consequences for or affects significant
numbers of people

The proposal has the potential to make a significant contribution
to promoting equality and the exercise of human rights.

Medium impact
(The proposal or process is somewhat
equality relevant)

There is some evidence to suggest potential for or evidence of
adverse impact

The proposal is institution wide or across services, but mainly
internal

The proposal has consequences for or affects some people
The proposal has the potential to make a contribution to
promoting equality and the exercise of human rights

Low impact
(The proposal or process might be equality
relevant)

There is little evidence to suggest that the proposal could result in
adverse impact

The proposal operates in a limited way

The proposal has consequences for or affects few people

The proposal may have the potential to contribute to promoting
equality and the exercise of human rights

EIA 02/2021

) ) abed



Step 5 - Mitigating adverse impacts and maximising positive impacts

5.1 Based on your findings, explain ways you plan to mitigate any unlawful prohibited conduct or
unwanted adverse impact. Where positive impacts have been identified, what is been done to
optimise opportunities to advance equality or foster good relations?

The assessment has found that there should be an overall positive impact from the implementation of the

proposals. A number of the proposals seeks to improve facilities available to community groups and would retain
areas of open space, where effected by a proposal.

Step 6 — Recommendations and conclusions of the assessment

6.1 Having considered the potential or actual impacts you should be in a position to make an
informed judgement on what should be done. In all cases, document your reasoning that
justifies your decision. There are four main options you can take:

- No major change to the proposal — the EIA demonstrates the proposal is robust. There is no potential for
unlawful discrimination or adverse impact and you have taken all opportunities to
advance equality and foster good relations, subject to continuing monitor and review.

EIA 02/2021

g/ abed



duty

justification column.

- Adjust the proposal —the EIA identifies potential problems or missed opportunities. This involves taking
steps to remove any barriers, to better advance quality or to foster good relations.

- Continue with the proposal (despite the potential for adverse impact) — you should clearly set out the

justifications for doing this and how you believe the decision is compatible with our obligations under the

- Stop and remove the proposal — if there are adverse effects that are not justified and cannot be
mitigated, you should consider stopping the proposal altogether. If a proposal leads to unlawful
discrimination it should be removed or changed.

Important: If there are any adverse impacts you cannot mitigate, please provide a compelling reason in the

Option selected

Conclusions/justification

No major change to the
proposal

It is considered that there will be no major impacts and consultation will be
undertaken where outlined in the report to ensure such.

Step 7 — Summary of agreed actions resulting from the assessment

EIA 02/2021

6/ abed



7.1 |What action, by whom, will be undertaken as a result of the impact assessment.

Impact/issue Action to be taken Person Timescale
responsible

N/a

Step 8 - Monitor, review and improve

8. 1 | How will the impact of your proposal be monitored and improved upon going forward?
Consider how will you identify the impact of activities on protected characteristics and other
marginalised groups going forward? How will any learning and enhancements be capitalised

on and embedded?

The effects of particular proposals will be monitored by Head of Property Services and all stakeholders to
ensure compliance.

EIA 02/2021

08 abed



Page 81

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 125

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



Place Scrutiny Committee

Work Plan 2025/26

Theme Item Lead Officer / Exec Scope
Member

26 January 2026

Property Property Asset Management To explore the Council

Strategy. introducing a strategy for
Council property disposals.

24 March 2026
Transport Update on the ClIr Ravilious

local transport

plan (Name TBC)
19 May 2026

Environment Neighbourhood Caretakers | Cllr Kent

[Further meeting with the chair and vice chair to agree the allocation of work plan items and the dates for

briefings.]

Unallocated items and items recommended from previous scrutiny committees.

ACV
How can CYC:

Promote adding to the local register of Assets of Community Value;
Make it easier for residents and community groups to nominate an ACV;
Celebrate the success stories of ACVs in our community to encourage new nominations;
Prepare for law changes on the Community Right to Buy in securing a wider range of ACVSs.

/2T abed

9 wa)| epuaby



Car Parking provision across the city

The report we did not get in March 2025 - Covering public, private and Park & Ride provision, Blue Badge
parking, income received, usage, impact on closing Castle Car Park on the wider estate, wider aims e.g. shifting
to less polluting vehicles, approach taken for busy shopping areas outside of the city-centre (e.g. Haxby, Acomb
Front St), future of Res Park.

Parking Enforcement

- Costs of service / Income generated - scope to improve? Can we offer services to private land owners?

- Activity across entire local authority area - How many enforcement officers do we have, how many fines issued,
which areas of their city are they issued in, how often are Res Park zones visited. A view of this over the last 5 -
10 years would be helpful for identifying trends.

- Position on pavement parking

- Consistency of enforcement (seen officers apply different limits to Double Yellow Lines)

- Hotline performance - how many reports logged, how many of these received visits in a timely manner (or at
all)

Out-of-hours drop in provision due to over-stretched Police unable to prioritise parking

Review of York’s economy / economic development strategy

Stock-take of performance against current strategy and its relevance next to the Combined Authority’s economic
development role, as well as key personell changes within CYC

Pros and cons of combining economic development services with the Combined Authority

Planning and Development Services - enforcement
Operational challenges / opportunities, performance over the last 5-10 years relative to staffing numbers,
numbers of (known) breaches by developers

Tourism Levy
Officers are exploring options with the partners/hospitality sector for a Tourism Levy. Opportunities for Scrutiny
engagement when/if a proposal is developed with partners/hospitality sector.

82T abed



A-Boards
How effective has the A-Board “ban” been?

Make It York

General update on their work, successes, challenges, relationship with all of the market traders, plans for
Christmas Market (with reference to Committee’s previous recommendation to look at ways to “spread” it out to
reduce crowding and make it more accessible).

Park & Ride
Opportunity to feed into full tender, following likely short-term tender discussed at March 2025 Scrutiny

Age Friendly York
What is being done to help make the city a better place for older people to live in?

Review of Council’s pedestrian crossing policy

Review of the original Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP)
Review of how the first BSIP has gone, achievements, next steps, future asks of the Mayoral Combined
Authority

Other Bus-related matters

- Enhanced Bus Partnership; how effective is it, is this the best model for delivering service improvements for
residents?

- Bus stop improvements

62T abed



Council-run businesses
How are CYC generating income commercially? Are we using everything we can to the best of our ability to
generate new or more income streams?

York’s Pay Gap

For 2026 as already had an initial report on the Gender Pay Gap — what is the city’s pay gap like in relation to
ethnicity and disability? What is the Council doing to support local businesses — especially smaller ones — to
improve on their gender pay gap performance?

Highway Maintenance
Adoption of the Highway Infrastructure Asset Management Plan will go through public decision making
2025 Library Needs Assessment Report (containing data from the Early Engagement Consultation)

Briefing ready to be provided on feedback from an early consultation on library usage that fed into the
Assessment of Need document. This information will then feed into a library strategy and associated budget
savings (target £600Kk) proposals which will be then consulted on.

Further opportunity further Scrutiny including either be a part of the consultation or pre scrutiny (or both) before
recommended proposals for Executive likely in the first quarter of 2026.

Review of the Council’s Play Strategy

Agreed Task and Finish Groups

| Topic | Origin | Aims and objectives | Membership

0ST abed



| TBC | TBC | TBC | TBC

Possible Task and Finish Groups

Topic Origin Aims and objectives Membership

Section 106 and CIL | Committee work planning | TBC TBC
briefing.

Planning best practice | Committee work planning | TBC TBC
briefing.

Holiday Lets May Committee meeting. | TBC TBC

Increasing September Committee TBC TBC

Commercialisation of | meeting.

the Council

On Street EV 25 November 2025 TBC TBC

Charging Committee meeting

Place Scrutiny Committee Remit:

10 Year Economic Strategy, Economic Growth & Inward Investment
10 Year Transport Strategy

Local Transport Strategy

Accessibility in public areas including City Centre Access Strategy
Parking Services (inc Digital ResPark)

Highways

Planning & Development Services

Strategic Housing Provision

Regeneration & Asset / Property Management

Public Realm

Waste Services

TEST abed



Fleet

Public Protection (Trading Standards, Environmental Health, Food Safety Licensing)
Client Management: Make it York, GLL

Client Management: YorWaste

Emergency Planning, Flood Risk

Monitor Emissions Impacts across the City

Consider MCA Joint Committee Decisions as relate to this Committee

Culture, inc York Theatre Royal, Museums, Music Venues Network (& elements of MIY)
Libraries & Archives

ZST abed



	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	2 Declarations of Interest

	3 Minutes
	Minutes

	5 Asset Management Strategy - 2026 to 2031
	Appendix A - Location Plan 25-27 Coney Street
	Appendix B - Location Plan 17-21 Piccadilly
	Appendix C Location Plan - Land Adjacent Community Stadium
	Appendix D - Allotment List
	Appendix E - Location Plan Bustardthorpe Allotments
	Appendix F - Location Plan Rowntree Park
	Appendix G Location Plan York Road, Strensall
	Appendix H - Location Plan Land at Hull Road Park
	Appendix I - EIA
	Confidential Appendix - External Valuation 25-27 Coney Street
	Confidential Appendix

	6 Work Plan

